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Volume I. 
 



A1.) (A1) 

1945 - The unpublished diary of Etelka Veszprémi, a 

teacher from Szombathely, written just after her liberation 

from Auschwitz, in a notebook she obtained there about 

her everyday life until her return home, as well as a 

recollection from the arrival of the Germans until her 

liberation from the camp, and its later typed, refined, 

unpublished version entitled " Nightmare". 

 

 

  



A2.) (A2) 

1945 - Diary and register book of mixed labour squadron, 

with reference to countless Jewish forcelabor servicemen. 

"..Handover of Jews in Sopron to the German authorities..; .. 

Research of labor servicemen Gyula Brenner and János 

Maros..; ..a list of fugitives..."  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

  



 

 

 

 

  



A3.) (A11) 

1940 - Made during labor service carved 

cane souvenir, marked Dr. Fried, from 

Gyergyószentmiklós. 231/27 Battalion.  

 

 

  



A4.) (A13) 

1883 - An extremly important 

legacy of letters from Károly 

Eötvös, lawyer, publicist, 

politician, member of parliament, 

and the defense attorney of the 

most infamous Tiszaeszlár anti-

Semitic blood trial, on the subject 

of the trial, or with letters and 

telegrams closely related to the 

trial. With many historically 

interesting details from István 

Tisza (prime minister), leaders of 

the Jewish community, local and 

foreign interested parties, and official figures in the case.  

Info: Click ; Click 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

http://mek-oszk.uz.ua/04000/04093/html/szocikk/15080.htm
https://yivoencyclopedia.org/article.aspx/Tiszaeszlar_Blood_Libel


 

  



A5.) (A13) 

1944 - The Mayor of Budapest capital city calls for registration of baptised, but distinctive 

Jews who were obliged to wear a distinctive sign. 

  



A6.) (A162) 

20th century - Béla Stollár 's estate. 

Béla Stollár (1917-1944. December 25.) 
Hungarian journalist, anti-fascist resister, 
Jewish rescuer, martyred national hero, a 
"Righteous Among Nations"!  
 

Dr. Béla Stollár was originally a sports journalist and a Hungarian short hand 
champion.  He became friends with the Deák family in the 1930's. When he 
was called up as a soldier in the National Defense in 1943 he was serving in the 
Ministryas a cadet sergeant, his task was a shorthand record and record of the 
discussions, orders and decrees of the Chiefs of Staff. At the place of duty he 
also had access to many official forms and seals. Stollár's rescue and resistance 
activities actually began after the Arrow Cross takeover. He first helped out 
the Deák family's daughter Eva (who later nominated him for the Righteous of 
the World Medal) with false identity documents, and then her mother, so that 
they could both escape to the countryside.  

Although literature describes him as a philosemite, his letters paint a slightly 
more nuanced picture of his character...  

Letter to Éva Deák:  

August 1941: "..if the Germans win, it's bad for me, because, for example, our bank Arrow Cross and other 
Arrow Cross members consider me pro-Jewish, if the British win, it's bad for me, because the Jews consider me 
Arrow Cross...so there's not as much chance as for a Jew who has a 50% hope that the British will win..". 

October 1941: "...when the stupid lawyers aid that you were the only one who could lose with this marriage, I 

hated you (probably because I felt that the lawyer thought I was a stupid, helpless little goy..". 

Besides his lifesaving activities, he was also active in the armed resistance. His group had its headquarters in an 

apartment at 22. Klotild Street (today's Béla Stollár Street!). The members of the group were escaped labour 

servicemen and fugitives from the army, the commander of whom was Stollár. He obtained false documents, 

military orders, food and weapons for them. On Christmas Eve, a truckload of Arrow Crossesd escended on the 

building in response to a denunciation. The caretaker wanted to use a secret bell to alert the resistance group. 

First, the caretaker and his family were killed as well as a couple who were visiting were murdered because the 

caretaker wanted to use a secret bell to alert the resistance group. Most of the group escaped through the 

roof, but Béla Stollár and some of his companions stayed behind to burn the compromising documents. For a 

while they successfully held off the Arrow Cross fighters with handgrenades, but were eventually defeated by 

the overwhelming force.  

The collection includes some of Béla Stollár's personal belongings (sword-bow, monogrammed 

cigarette case, plaque, etc.), his intimate correspondence with Eva Deák  (who was also his fiancée 

but who he did not dare to marry because of her Jewish origin!!), his personal and family papers such 

as birth and death certificates, etc., his Jad Vasem - Righteous of the World medal  and related 

documentation, his numerous photographs, his life-size paintings, etc 

Info: Click ; Info: Click ; Info: Click  

https://www.yadvashem.org/yv/en/exhibitions/righteous-sportsmen/stollar.asp
http://embermentok.eletmenete.hu/stoll%C3%A1r-b%C3%A9la-0
https://www.google.com/maps/place/Budapest,+Stoll%C3%A1r+B%C3%A9la+u.,+1055/@47.5098881,19.0502191,16z/data=!4m5!3m4!1s0x4741dc0e0e8f7bcf:0x9a780c34ff49dc35!8m2!3d47.5101381!4d19.0514315
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A7.) (A14) 

1944 - Official copy of a letter from high school teacher Margit Sávos to the president of the 

Budapest Royal Prosecutor's Office regarding the criminal prosecution of 15-year-old Ernő Steiner for 

the "Offense of racial slur". (miscegenation) 

"...the said Jewish youth in Budapest, on January 10, 1944, attempted to obtain the Hungarian 

resident, decent non-Jewish Mária Budai, for the purpose of extramarital sexual intercourse, by taking 

the woman to the Balaton Hotel for the purpose of intercourse, where they both undressed..." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



A8.) (A163) 

1946 - Mihály Kolosváry-Borcsa (1896-1946) 

anti-Semite, Hungarian journalist, soldier, 

politician and later the "Hungarian-Goebbels". 

In 1944 his appointment as Secretary of State 

and Government Commissioner meant 

practically unlimited power over the operation 

of the press, radio, book publishing and foreign 

news services. His task was to prevent the 

publication of works by Jewish writers, 

and to concentrate domestic and foreign news 

in one hand, i.e. to influence public opinion in 

accordance with the government. The collection contains personal documents and his 

correspondence with his family from the death row. 

Info: Click 

".. I live in a cell here with László Bárdossy ..." (former prime minister of Hungary during jewish deportations) 

 

From 1938 he headed the press department of the Imrédy 
government. In 1939 he became a member of parliament for the 
Hungarian Life Party. From June 1939 he was the president of the 
National Hungarian Press Chamber. In 1939 he returned to his 
newspaper and again became the editor-in-chief of Függetlenség. 
During the Sztójay government, on 15 April 1944, Governor Miklós 
Horthy appointed him to the position of State Secretary-Government 
Commissioner based on the proposal of Prime Minister Döme 
Sztójay. 

His appointment meant practically unlimited power over the 
operation of the press, radio, book publishing and foreign news 
services. His task was to prevent the publication of works by Jewish 
writers , and to concentrate domestic and foreign news in one hand, 
that is, to influence public opinion in accordance with the 
government. On June 16, 1944, as president, he participated in the 
large-scale destruction of books by Jewish authors. “According to 
official reports, the works of 120 Hungarian and 130 foreign 
authors of Jewish origin were crushed at the ceremony. During the 
ceremony, which was filmed for propaganda purposes, 447,627 
books, the cargo of 22 fully loaded freight cars, were destroyed.”  

 

He was dismissed from office during the Lakatos government, but after the Arrow Cross took power he 

resumed these positions. The primary objective of the propaganda machine he controlled was to continue the 

war, to cover up German losses, and to keep the soldiers fighting unbroken. In early 1945, he fled to Germany 

with the proceeds of the press room and his archives to escape the Soviets, but there he was captured by the 

OSS led by Márton Himmler, who extradited him to Hungary as a war criminal. His People's Court trial was held 

together with that of Ferenc Kassai-Schallmayer, and he was found guilty of all charges. Both were sentenced 

to death and executed by hanging.  

https://www.szombat.org/hirek-lapszemle/az-1944-es-konyvbezuzasra-emlekeznek-ma-delutan-az-unnepi-konyvheten?fbclid=IwAR0BNP7-7NXyN8tmvSsGhC0b2exL_QEoXzegPRb17gQ7THcz_kro6MjP1-A


 

  

 

 

  



A9.) (A260) 

1944 - A large letter of protection issued by the Spanish Embassy to Róza Grünwald. Signed by 

Angel  Sanz  Briz, "the angel of Budapest". Of this type of Shutz Pass only  ~400 pieces were issued! 

Info: click 

   

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/%C3%81ngel_Sanz_Briz


A10.) (A290) 

1944 - A photographic Shutz Pass issued by the Swedish Embassy. Protected persons: Kálmán 

Köpeczky, Magda and their daughter Imola. Signed by Per Anger, Raoul Wallenberg’s colleague at 

the Swedish Embassy. 

Info: click 

 

  

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Per_Anger


A11.) (A295) 

1944 - A certificate of exemption from the Royal Hungarian Ministry of Defence for Imre Strausz 

and his family (names listed one by one). The interesting feature of this rare document is that Imre's 

yellow star can be seen in thepicture of the card. (Photos of people wearing yellow stars are 

extremely rare in Hungary.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



A12.) (A15) 

1944 - A 14-page list of Jewish tinsmiths and mechanics operating in Budapest, broken down by 

districts. The list contains approximately 400 names, sorted by name, location, profession and 

number of skilled workers. 

 

  

  



A13.) (A334) 

1923-1945 – Führer family collection. 

It contains interesting correspondence and 

photographs of Henrik Führer, Zoltán, and József 

during their forced labor service. According to the 

documents, Zoltán disappeared during the collapse of 

the Soviet front (Don River), but according to a later 

paper, he must have been alive until December 31, 

1944 (the date on the back of one of the 

photographs). His brother József, also described on 

the back of a photograph, died in June 1945. 

"...in your letter dated the 30th of last month you wrote 

that you would issue a Spanish protection letter for me, but 

unfortunately it has not arrived here to this day...; ..those 

who have protection cannot be taken across the border..." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 

  



 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



A14.) (A460) 

1945-1949- Particulary important documents of Irén Palásthy (Mrs 

János Bartsch) Hungarian-born actress from Hollywood (her husband 

Hans Bartsch, famous American producer). Irene stayed in Hungary 

during the war to support her seriously ill mother. She was almost 

deported, accused of spying in June 1944. The contents of the large 

number of documents include the post-war negotiations - 

correspondence between her husband and his lawyers, denunciations, 

compensation, restitution of stolen property and the horrors of the 

war. 

 In the spring of 1944, to avoid the planned ghettoisation, Palásthy moved 

her elderly and very ill mother and three sisters to her flat in Budapest. Her 

brothers-in-law had already been defending the homeland as members of 

the Shovel Army on the Ukrainian front then. János Szalai, master tailor from 

Rákosszentmihály, Árpád Varga Hankovszky a gymnastics teacher 

and instructor in Rákosszentmihály, and his wife, Izabella 

Hankovszkyné Csécs, who worked as a search woman in 

Rákosszentmihály in the collection of deportees, denounced Irene 

Palásthyto Andor Jaross, Minister of the Interiorat the KHEOK. 

As a result of the denunciation, Palásthy's mother and sisters 

were deported back to Rákosszentmihály, and the actress was 

interned, and the day after the Rákosszentmihály transport, 

Palásthy was pushed into a departing wagon. She was rescued by 

gendarme captain Perlaki after he found out, that the actress was 

also an American citizen, whom according to the regulations, can 

be interned but not deported. From there she was escorted on 

foot to the Ludovika, detained and beaten for three days, and 

from there she was carried first to Csepel and later to 

Békásmegyer, while beaten with rifle, as a result of which she was deafened. 

 

Info: Click 

Info: Click 

Info: Click 

 

 

 

 

  

https://www.imdb.com/title/tt0020147/
https://www.newspapers.com/image/?spot=14688374&fcfToken=42437a4339484f686f342f69334f6d4c4853717054694c2b707a6b7759705a724c6174786d516766582f796d61635531643967726342724a513356434847556a
https://www.keruletiujsag.hu/keruleti-hirek/pesti-keruletek/16-keruleti-ujsag-rakosszentmihaly-sashalom-matyasfold-arpadfold-cinkota/budapest16/1944-junius-30-ra-emlekezve?fbclid=IwAR24ctPNDfhZNLCJ3dXnEqqJLl0m1_HVNvfG-W7RAlOzhpKF_HMggRRQIGo


A15.) (A154) 

1944 - An extremly important announcement of the Budapest Autonomous Orthodox Jewish 

Community to call for matza payment, dated one day after the German invasion of Hungary. 

 

 

  



A16.) (A597) 

1942 - Jewish school tableau taken in the courtyard of the Autonom Orthodox Jewish Community in 

Kazinczy Street during the war, with the signatures of the students and teachers on the back of the 

photo. 

 

 

  



A17.) (A598) 

1939 - Photos taken of thebohers of the Újpest Yeshiva, with the full list of students on the back of 

one of the photos. 

 

 

 

  



A18.) (A12) 

20th century - Prayer book with a shocking entry. 

"...Regina Fischer died on the 30th of Nov. 1944 in Strasshof in the disinfection room..." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

  

 

 

  



  

Volume II. 
 



B1.) (A1) 

1873 - Collection of Károly Posner who was the 

flourisher of the Hungarian graphic, paper 

processing, bookbinding and map making industry. 

He is one of the 280 Hungarian Jewish families 

raised to the title of nobleman. Main contents of 

the collection: 

- Certificate of nobelity signed by Franz Joseph 

- Donation letter of the Iron crown order 

- Four plates of various sizes with his own noble 

coat (extremly rare) 
 

More Info here: Click  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

http://mek.oszk.hu/04000/04093/html/szocikk/13960.htm?fbclid=IwAR2_ooLOQaVxYbvh9pztnECmAr5iHaVV7dkUO299rrWzMjOFnwHwLBqd4Tg


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B2.) (A4) 

1787 - An extremly rare original printing of the "naming decree" of Joseph II. in Hungarian. 

The "hatted king" in the name of modernisation obliged 

the Jews to adopt German names, because until the end 

of the 18th century, many Jews were only given a 

forename linked to their paternal name. Although the 

Jews had the right to choose a name theoretically free, 

the administrative corruption of ten occurred here as 

well. If somebody paid for it, he could create name from 

nice-sounding images of nature, such as: Grünfeld, 

Rosenberg, Goldberger. Others for some bribes got 

forenames such as König, Kaiser, Graf, Herzog. Those 

who could not afford bribes often had to settle for a 

simpler name, of ten referring to their physical 

appearance such as Klein, Gross, Braun or Roth.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B3.) (A5) 

19th century - Silver medal for the city of Pécs, bearing the 

imperial decree of Franz Joseph, giving Jewish communities 

the right to acquire land and real estate. It is unique for only 

one piece to exist in its original case.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B4.) (A9) 

1944 - Two extremly rare cardboard signes of the Swedish Red Cross, headed by Valdemar Langlet. 

"..Charity donations are made exclusively by postal invitation.. " 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B5.) (A11) 

1945 - Prayer book of Gyula Salamon with two entries, that 

includes names, places (Mauthazen, Buchenwald) and tatoo 

numbers (37542) from death camps. "..Salamon Gyula, Leichter 

József..." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B6.) (A19) 

20th century - Collection of jewish community seals, including a kosher slaughter house stamp, 

date stamp and many other. 

 

 

 

  



B7.) (A29) 

1924 - Large size, velvet Torah cabinet cover (parochet). 

 

  



B8.) (A14)  

1890 - A very rare embroidered Shabath chala cover, with text of the kiddush prayer, dates, and 

family monograms.. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B9.) (B36.) 

1945/1948 - Documents and photographs of József Mendelsohn, including a copy of the 

certificate from Dr. György Román , Dr. Pál Markovits and Zoltán Bihari stating that József 

Mendelsohn volunteered as a partisan on September 18, 1944. 

 

 

 

  



B10.) (D1) 

1941-1944 - Letters of Dezső Schwartz from force labour service 

and from the ghetto of Miskolc with extremely interesting content. 

"...we are 30 of us crammed in to one room; ,,..there is no way out of 

the ghetto...”; „…we have to perish here…" 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B11.) (D6) 

1940-1944 - Letters of Mihály Derkovits, a labour 

serviceman with particularly interesting content. 

 

"...With regard to Kálmán’s question, the fact is that he was 

summoned to Várad and was transferred with others…he was 

taken away with towns people, so his wife does not know 

about him.." 

 

 

  



B12.) (D45)  

~1940 - National colour, labour service armband. Before the compulsory wearing of the yellow or 

white armband, theJewish labourers had to wear a national colour armband on their left arm.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B13.) (D46) 

1942-1944 - Particularly rare photographs of forced labours at work. 

 

 

 

  



B14.) (F2) 

1938 - Agitational poster of theHungarian National Socialist Party, the predecessor of the Arrow 

Cross Party. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B15.) (F6)  

1944 - Announcement by the mayor of Budapest regarding the heating of apartments and business 

premises and the reporting of fuel stocks, specifically addressing in several places the stocks of 

abandoned Jewish apartments and Jews under foreign protection, and their use. 

  



B16.) (F8) 

1944 - Announcement of impounded Jewish possessions. 

"...Jewish property under tight lockdown...". 

  



B17.) (J5) 

20th century - A photograph of a blackboard anti-Semitic drawing on an unknown university.  

"..down with the jews.. ; ..we sympathize with the Hitler boys..."  

  



B18.) (J6) 

1945 - Diary / memoir detail of the war conditions in Budapest. The writing 

talks about Jews being "tossed" into the Danube, Swiss and Swedish 

protection etc.  

"...What is this? They threw the Jews into the Danube. .." 

  



B19.) (J19) 

1944 - Certificatefromthe Royal Swedish Embassy to the Sacher family proving that as Spanish 

protected people, they can live in a Swedish sheltered house. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B20.) (J27) 

1944 - An extremly rare protection certificate issued by the consulate of the Dominican Republic to 

Dezső Friedman. 

 

  



B21.) (J22) 

1940's - Negatives from a series of photos of a Hungarian military doctor, including a glimpse into 

an unknown ghetto during his trips. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B22.) (J25) 

1944 - A letter written to György Kemény force laborer (novel writer) from his father in the 

Debrecen ghetto (school building). According to the date, it was posted just before the deportations, 

at the day when the ghetto was liquidated to the nearby brick factory. 

’’..Don't worry about us, we are here in the High School building on the 2nd floor, next to the 

teacher's room 2a. We are ok, we had to come here from the Csokonai street…” 

 

 

  



B23.) (J26) 

1945 - List of Jews returned from deportation and forced labour to the city of Pécs till 15th of April 

1945. Large poster. 

 

  



B24.) (J31) 

1944/45 - A "Reassuring" letter to from Waldsee or in other words Auschwitz (!) and release 

documents from mauthazen's of the addressee. According to testimonies, people who wrote home 

with the name of the place "Waldsee" received the blank postcards and a pencil in the crematorium 

yard and were sent to the showers just after. 

 

 

 

 

  



B25.) (B3) 

1944 - Urgent official instruction sent from the chief magistrate of the central district of Pest county 

to all county leaders. 

".. Subject : Restricting Jews' shopping to a specific time of day..." / June 19, 1944, signature of the 

chief clerk. ...I will restrict shopping by Jews / persons required to wear a yellow star / to the hours 

between 10 am to 12 noon..." 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B26.) (J43) 

1944 - A Swedish letter of protection issued by the Swedish Embassy and a particularly rare 

Argentine letter of protection for Wilhelm Kreutz (Vilmos Kreutz), signed by Raoul Wallenberg, Per 

Anger and Carl Ivan Danielson. 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B27.) (K1) 

1944-47 - A large collection of photographs of Rózsi Szabó, who 

was liberated from a death camp (Bergen Belsen?) and then moved 

to Sweden (then to Israel?). Among the photos we can find one taken 

shortly after the liberation, in which Rózsa is seen in her numbered 

prison uniform, and a photo of Sara Rosenberg in altered prison 

uniform sent to her. The collection contains several group and 

personal photographs of camp life after the liberation, with writings 

on the back. 

 

 

  



B28.) (K35) 

1944 - Decision of the Minister of Trade and Transport on the change of directors of expropriated 

Jewish transport companies. (List of new directors and the companies). 

 

  



B29.) (K38) 

1944 - Reports from the police station of Kispest about handling of Jewish belongings and property 

after ghettoisation and deportation. 

"..I report that on August 16, 1944, at 10:30 a.m., the Jewish house at number 42, Kispest Werkele 

Street (Ghetto) was opened by the financial police officer József Németh.. and György Kazinczy.. and, 

according to the inventory, it was handed over to resident Benő Kalmár... for housing.."  

 

 

  



B30.) (K40) 

1942 - László Endre, Deputy-lieutenant, the "HungarianEichmann" (the main perpetrators of 

deportations in Hungary), his confidential decision in a matter of the census ofunreliable persons 

from the state security point of view . 

"..mother's name, place and date of birth, religion, previous religion, whether can be considered as 

Jewish ...."  



B31.) (N2) 

1939-45 - Lajos Schwarcz's force laborer's correspondence with 

his wife Klara Schwarcz and his family. The collection includes 

hundreds of very important letters (mentioning Waldsee 

(Auschwitz) reassuring letters as a "scam" in 1944 or the lack of 

people returning from deportation to the city of Kisvárda at 1945), 

three photos and Klara's lock of hair in a letter that was not 

delivered to Lajos and came back.  

 

 

 

 

  



B32.) (Q46) 

1945-1953 - Shortly after the post-war period 

(1945-53), a collection of documents of the official 

orthodox and neologic rabbinic nomination.  

"..Arnold Dávodovits, a resident of Kapuvár...he asked 

for the permission to take the rabbi’s qualifying 

examination. Considering that the young man 

previously had been a member of the renowned Yeshiva 

in Szatmár and Sauhely for many years, his request was 

granted.." 

 

 

 

 

 

  



B33.) (Q49) 

1848 - Report of the Paks congregation's general assembly in Hebrew and Yiddish, with the 

signatures of the town's leaders and another prominent rabbinical persons from the time of the War 

of Independence in 1848. At this time the rabbi of the city was Joel Ungár, who took the position of 

Rabbi of Paks in 1840, and the foundation of the Yeshiva is linked to his name as well. He is 

considered as one of thegreatest of the yeshivas of Bratislava and he was a disciple of the famous 

Hatam Sofer. 

 

 

  



B34.) (S56) 

1945-1947 - Large collection of the 

hungarian Zionist newspaper "Háderech", 

titled "The Road". 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  



 

  

Volume III. 
 



C1.) (A1) 

1942-44 - An extremly rare child sized padded vest, heavily torn on right shoulder, with sewn-on 

yellow star. 

  



C2.) (U1) 

1942 - An extremly rare engraved souvenir from the Russian front made from a cartridge case by an 

(Orthodox?) Jewish forced laborer. 

"Memory from the Russian Land; 1941/42; L'kavod shabes (in Hebrew) "  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



C3.) (A124) 

1944 - Cardboard of the property under the protection of the 

International Committee of the Red Cross,with official seal and 

signature of Friedrich Born Director General of the 

International Red Cross in Hungary. 

Info: Click 

  

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Friedrich_Born


C4.) (A126) 

1944 - " No Jews live here !" Budapest poster during the period of yellow star houses. (Mixed hose) 

 

  



C5.) (A125) 

1944 - Márkus Kellner's printing house and its employees, several of whom with yellow stars on 

their chest. (Photos of jews wearing yellow star are extremly rare in Hungary!) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   



C6.) (A82) 

1944 - Two extremely rare photographs from Budapest (Angyalföld) of Jews with yellow stars 

cleaning up rubble from July 1944, and a rubble cleaning ID card from the Central Council of 

Hungarian Jews for " Éva Nagy ". 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



C7.) (A46) 

20th century - Éva Heyman's the 

"Hungarian Anne Frank" and her families 

collection. 

Éva , like Anne Frank , kept a diary during the 

war until her deportation. Later, her mother, 

Ágnes Zsolt, turned her daughter's diary into a 

book, which she received in 1945 from their 

cook, who had kept it until then. Ágnes later fell 

into depression and then committed suicide 

because of her daughter's fate. The diary was 

first published in 1948. The interesting thing 

about the collection is a written photo postcard 

from 1943, from which her statue in Nagyvárad 

(Oradea) was modeled, on the 

back: "For Dad's birthday, with lots 

of love from Éva". The estate also 

includes his mother's ID cards, her 

marriage certificate with nationally 

renowned writer Béla Zsolt, and 

other personal documents. 

Info: Click ; Click (Instagram!) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Eva_Heyman
https://www.instagram.com/eva.stories/


C8.) (H1) 

1944 - An extremly important list of names of the housing 

area designated for baptized Jews (so called "white ghetto"), 

during the ghettoization of Szeged according to name, 

religion, occupation, address and number of people living in 

the same household. According to the document, there were 

only 248 places for 468 applicants. 

’’..space requirement…for 220 people there was 1320 

squaremetres, which is equivalent to approximately 70 

rooms..” 

Info: Click 

Info: Click 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

https://tti.abtk.hu/images/kiadvanyok/folyoiratok/tsz/tsz1992_3-4/molnar.pdf
https://encyclopedia.ushmm.org/content/hu/photo/deportation-from-szeged


C9.) (H3/H4) 

1944 - Two armbands used in the Szeged ghetto with the inscription "OD" and "R.32". 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



C10.) (H5) 

1944 - Seal of the property of the Szeged ghetto. Sealed by the Szeged authorities after the 

deportation of the Jews, dated and signed on the back. 

 

 

   



C11.) (A143) 

1945 - List of the Budapest Autonomous Orthodox Jewish Community Public School Board, in 

connection with the census of orphaned children of deported parents. The list contains the 

children's names, addresses, and the names of the parents or guardians. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



C12.) (A128) 

1941 - An extremely important photo taken in Dnepropetrovsk (Ukraine), of Hungarian soldiers and 

Jews being deported. Around this time, the 121st and 124th Infantry Brigades of the Hungarian Army 

were sent to Ukraine. 

  



C13.) (U4) 

19-20th century - A particularly large enamel sign of Ármin Schlesinger's shop. These signboards 

are particularly rare, as when Jewish businesses were expropriated, they were the first to be 

destroyed by the new owners. 

  



C14.) (A219) 

1944 - 1944 - Nagyvárad (Oradea). The contract of Dr. András Kunda, of Jewish origin, from April 

1944 with SS hauptsturmfuhrer Walter Strohschneider regarding the relinquishment of 1/3 of the 

ownership of his hair ornament and comb factory, which employed ~300 people, to the German 

treasury (?). The deportations of Nagyvárad took place barely a month later. 

The deportation to Oradea lasted from May 23, 1944 to June 27, 1944, and out of more than 27,000 

deportees, only 2,500 survived. 

  

 

 

 

  



C15.) (K38) 

20th century - A large and extremely important 

collection of documents, photographs, and other 

objects of Ferenc Szél, a lawyer of Jewish origin 

(converted), scout leader, and military officer in 

World War II. 

Due to his family's early baptism and his dedicated 

scouting activities, he maintained good relations 

with the elite of the city of Kaposvár. During WW 

II, he served as a military lawyer, an officer in a 

motorized battalion, then as a labor 

serviceman, and later as a forced  labor 

serviceman. According to several documents 

after the war, he saved many Jewish 

conscripts through his intercession. According 

to his letter of protection signed by Raoul 

Wallenberg, from the end of November 

1944 he was a permanent employee of the 

Swedish embassy and the Swedish Red 

Cross repatriation department. 

 

  



C16.) (A256) 

1945 - Reports to the Putnok police authorities, including about people returning home from 

deportation on the same day they were hired , about the town clerk who had appropriated Jewish 

property, or about the secretary general of the local communist party who had recently searched 

for Jews hiding from deportation in the ghetto. 

’’…Jr. Lajos Csörnök, a ghetto researcher, a leader of the ghetto investigations, a collector of Jewish 

hostages, an informer of the infamous Arrow Cross chief bailiff , Mogyoróssy  and the originator  of 

many Jewish misfortunes, is today the secretary of the Communist Party….” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  



C17.) (A249) 

1944 - Esztergom city, title: ".. Jews obliged to wear a distinctive badge .." handwritten multi-page 

list. Although the title of the list containing 389 people mentions a census of April 4, the entries also 

include a baby born on May 11, 1944 (?) , and due to the alphabetical list of names, it is likely that 

this document could have been the attendance list for the deportation carried out extremely 

efficiently by the Hungarian gendarmes from May 1944. 

 Info: Click 

 

 

  

http://hdke.hu/hirek/esztergom-1944-majus-11-sorsfordito-evfordulok


C18.) (A250) 

1947 - Documents, verdicts, testimonies of the criminal trial of Dr. Ferenc Pethő, the gendarmerie 

captain, who was responsible for the deportation in Esztergom. 

"..as the wingcommander  of  the Esztergom districton 5th of June 1944 he ordered the round-up and 

deportation of the Jewish population in Esztergom and its surroundings... He disregarded the 

humanity requirements of the rule of law and acted with ruthless severity. He ordered his 

subordinates not to allow the persecuted, who had been roused from their sleep, more than half an 

hour to prepare for their journey and subjected the women to bodily searches that were grossly 

offensive to their sense of modesty. In several cases it was forbidden to give water to the pursued in 

the gendarmerie barracks...” 

 

 

  



C19.) (M4) 

1943 - Letter from Munkács from the 

"Jewish Agency Regional Palestine 

Office" written to Ottó Komoly, the 

president of the "Budapest Aid and 

Rescue Committee", founded in 1943, 

and a Zionist leader, in which they 

object that the Transcarpathian 

community received fewer places 

from the then-effective emigration 

quota to Palestine than the Szochnut 

(an international agency founded in 

1922 to represent the Jewish 

community against the Mandate) 

had previously allocated to them. 

 

[ Ottó Komoly, president of the 

Hungarian Zionist Association and the 

Jewish Aid and Rescue Committee, 

director of the Relief Department of 

the International Red Cross. Along 

with Rezső Kasztner, he played a huge 

role in rescuing the Jews of Hungary 

and the region during the Holocaust. 

Since the anti-Jewish laws did not 

always apply to Jews with war 

decorations, the coercive measures 

introduced after the German 

occupation of the country did not apply to him, and he did not have to wear 

a yellow star. Taking advantage of his freedom of movement and cooperating with Kasztner, he participated in 

compiling the passenger list for the so-called “Kasztner train” to be sent to neutral Switzerland. While Kasztner 

primarily negotiated with the Germans, Ottó Komoly worked on the “Hungarian line”. He was murdered by 

Arrow Cross in early January 1945. ] 

 

Info: Click 

 

  

https://hu.wikipedia.org/wiki/Komoly_Ott%C3%B3


C20.) (E52/E53/E54) 

1944 - Official documents, decrees, lists of works by Jewish authors in the subject of collection and 

destruction of them. 

 

 

 

 

 

   



C21.) (F18) 

1780 - Hungarian and German-language circular in which, among others, four Jewish persons are 

wanted: Israel Philip and his wife Esther, and Mark Israel and his wife Rebekah.  

"The appearance of the jewish Phillip Israel: …Thin, dry, medium sized fzeg color appearance, with 

chestnut hair, veiled but with a short beard and moustache like a 23-year-old speaks clearly in Czech, 

German and jewish …" 

 

 

 

 



C22.)   

1940-44 - A Particularly large collection of official documents related to anti-semitic laws. 

(institutional side) 

"..Designated coffee-making and brewing (buffet, espresso) establishments for Jews required to wear 

the distinctive sign.." ; "..1942..decree regulating the alienation of certain real estate owned by 

Jews.." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 



C23.) 

1939-1944 - A particularly large collection of official documents of Hungarian industrial 

associations, including: tinsmith, female tailor, pharmacist, hatter, printer/photographer, baker, 

electrician and the collection of other general  orders, reports, lists, other documents related to the 

Jewish laws. (institutional side) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



C24.) (F34) 

1944 - A particularly large-scale and important proclamation issued by Gábor Vajna, the Arrow Cross 

Minister of the Interior, about the creation of the "large ghetto" in Budapest. 

"...The Hungarian Royal Government has ordered the Jews who were obliged to wear the yellow star 

to move together in the streets of the 7th district bounded by Dohány, Nagyatádi  Szabó István, 

Király, Csányi (numbers 3-6) and Rumbach Sebestyén (numbers 15-19) Madách Imre út ,Madách Imre 

tér and Károly körút and to move to the area (ghetto) designated for Jews from the area inhabited by 

non-Jews…" 

Info: Click  

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

https://hu.wikipedia.org/wiki/Budapesti_gett%C3%B3


C25.) (F33) 

1944 - Two particularly large and important posters issued by the Mayor of Budapest, with the list of 

the cancelled and thenewly added inhabitable buildings by Jews both on Buda and Pest side (yellow 

star houses). The origin of the name is that under the regulation the entrances to the buildings had 

to be marked with a six-pointed yellow star. After the establishment of the Budapest ghetto in 

November 1944, the inhabitants of the houses outside the ghetto had to move into the ghetto. 

info: Click 

 

https://hu.wikipedia.org/wiki/Csillagos_h%C3%A1z


  

C26.) (A99) 

1944 - The "Svenska Roda Korset" pin of the Royal Swedish Red Cross. During the war, the Swedish 

Red Cross, under the leadership of Valdemar Langlet (The Righteous Among Nations) played a keyrole 

in the rescue of Jews in Hungary. 

Info: Click 

  

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Valdemar_Langlet


C27.) (U28) 

1887 - A  large engraved silver-plated commemorative charity box in memory of the Schreiber-

Schwartz family, from Sümeg at 1887. (The year is the construction of the synagogue!)  

Info: Click 

 

     

https://hu.wikipedia.org/wiki/S%C3%BCmegi_zsinag%C3%B3ga


C28.) (N16) 

1930's - Photos taken at a dinner by the "Orthodox People's Table" organization featuring world 

famous rabbis, such as Rabbi Chaim Elazar Spira of Munkács. Schaffer photo salon. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Volume IV. 
 



D1.) (A1) 

1942 - Eight particularly important 

photos of the execution of forced 

laborers by Hungarian soldiers from 

the collection of Alajos Erényi , a 

military musician and later a painter, 

who, despite strict prohibition, 

photographed the series himself 

from under the cover of his coat. 

According to the literature, apart 

from these photographs, only five 

photos of execution/abuse of 

forced laborers exist . 

Info: Click 

 

Excerpt from Alajos Erényi's diary : "... September 20, 1942. We got up around 5 a.m. Today is Sunday. We 

made the bed we slept in, then cleaned ourselves up. Then we looked at the Jews who were going to be 

executed in a few hours, I was very surprised when I saw Rezső Spitz among them . He just nodded at me, and 

we couldn't speak to each other because of the guards. I didn't take my eyes off him for a second. He behaved 

bravely. Supposedly their crime was that they wanted to go over to the Russians and get rid of their unjust 

suffering. But they were captured. Together with Russian soldiers. I can't help it. It's terrible. We had to go back 

to our accommodation with a painful farewell look. The weather is beautiful, but mild, autumnal. I couldn't 

have lunch. We were in our accommodation, then lined up. Everyone had to watch there. I put my camera in 

and took it. Maybe I'll manage to get a picture of Rezső, on his last journey. to take a picture. We left at 3 

o'clock. Rezső Spitz looked at me very much. After the verdict was announced, 4 soldiers accompanied them. 

We were not allowed to speak, we just felt for each other. I also took a picture of Rezső from very close up, from 

3 meters, and I also took 7 pictures of him. They had to kneel, then they were blindfolded, and then they were 

shot in the head 4 times. I looked at Rezső Spitz all the way. He was very hairy, ragged and thin. So it was a 

terrible sight. Rezső Spitz was executed at 4:15 . Then I went back, had dinner, and then we went to bed. I 

couldn't fall asleep at all. The weather was cold, cloudy and windy . .." 

Info: Click 

 

Rezső Spitz published in 1973 , with several photos from the collection. 

  

https://mafot.blog.hu/2018/01/19/megkerdeztuk_vii_csakugyan_keves_kepunk_van_a_holokausztrol
https://www.sulinet.hu/oroksegtar/data/telepulesek_ertekei/tab/tabi_kilato_1992_1993/pages/024_naplo_don_kanyar.htm


 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Spitz Rezső 



D2.) (A11) 

1941-1944 - Two extremly rare photos of a destroyed and looted rural (upland?) synagogue. 

Hungarian soldiers in the gallery! 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



D3.) (A13) 

1945 - A prayer book that visited a concentration camp, with a shocking 

entry. 

"..This prayer book belonged to my good friend Dezső Stöckl , who died 

of starvation next to me in the Gunskirchen extermination camp on April 

25, 1945, and I buried him there. 5701 Ijar 13. .." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



D4.) (A17) 

20th century - A particularly important Passover Haggadah, 

which its owner, Kálmán Wirth, the principal of the girls' high 

school of the Pest Jewish Community, also used as a diary. 

Kálmán died in the Buapest ghetto in 1944. The first entry was 

written in 1910, the first year of his marriage, and he wrote in 

particular detail about the First World War, hoping every year 

that it would soon end. 

"..We are holding the first Seder on April 6, 1917. The peace 

that was in sight last year has unfortunately not come into 

effect to this day, and indeed, the Western states are only now 

wreaking their full vengeance on each other with the utmost 

cruelty and savagery.." 

Later, entries were also made in peacetime, but the most 

meaningful writing was related to the Jewish laws: 

"..Now, after the I. Jewish Law (1938), the II. Jewish Law was most recently passed (1939. IV / 1941. 

XV tc), expropriating Jewish properties. But in our country, compared to other countries, the 

provisions that are implemented for Jews are still humane and tolerant . .." 

Last post: 

".. Our current seder - which is anything but a seder - is on April 7, 1944, the first day . .."  

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



D5.) (A34) 

1946 - A very important two-page list of people from the Swedish Red Cross, with the names and 

addresses of many well-known poets and writers. 

".. György Faludy .. Tibor Déri .. Oszkár Ascher ... Gábor Karinthy .." 

   



D6.) (AA1) 

1945-1946 - An extremely important summary list of valuables 

deposited/left/returned at the Miskolc Jewish Community 

during the Holocaust. The typed list details the jewelry and 

securities placed in the inventory and who received their 

contents between 1945 and 1946. The incomplete document 

contains 291 entries out of 543. 

".. Weisz Lászlóné Miskolc, Hadirokkantak u. 15.sz. Deposit: 1 

piece of envelope containing gold values sealed with the stamp 

of our institute with a list, package no. 639. received by: Pál Róth 

Budapest VII. Rózsa u. 27.sz. I/1 on XX. 24. 1945. .." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



D7.) (AA4) 

1922 - 1944 - 1949 - Minutes of the general assembly 

of the Orthodox community of Erdőbénye from 1922 to 

1944. The last entry of the 260-page booklet is from 

1949 by Miklós Méhes /Mantlinger/ is particularly 

important. 

"..I saved the community records, all the birth 

certificates, the register of the seats and five Sefer 

Torahs for posterity on August 23, 1944, under life-

threatening circumstances. Due to my relocation, I am 

handing all of these over to Lajos Tímár for further 

safekeeping. May he keep them with the same love as I 

kept them. Erdőbénye, November 14, 1949. .." 

 

 

  



D8.) (AA10) 

1945 - An extremely rare handwritten pencil list of Miskolc residents in Theresienstadt.  

"..Klein Edit..Spitz Erzsébet..Horovitz Edith..Izráel Sára..." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



D9.) (AA15) 

1945 - Early deportation report of 

Dr. Imréné Kenéz born Friderika 

Nemes, dated February 28, 1945. 

"..This train was the so-called death 

train, because they openly declared 

that they were taking us to our 

death. The train had just left the 

station when, on orders from above, 

it was stopped and we were taken 

out. The police officer there, whose 

name I do not know, angrily 

declared that we Jews had started 

the war, and yet we were being 

taken to a place from which there 

was no return.., ..the madman was 

shot dead on the way, but the body 

was thrown back among us to 

make up the number.." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



D10.) (AA20) 

1945 - Early deportation report of Béla Rosenfeld, a resident of Újvidék (novi sad), dated March 

1945. 

"..on May 18, 1944, we were deported from the Garany internment camp, we arrived in Auschwitz 

on May 21...; .. I know that those deported Jewish people who wrote home with the name of the 

place "Waldsee" received the blank postcards in the crematorium yard and were executed after 

writing them.. " 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



D11.) (AA22) 

1945 - A particularly important detailed official minutes 

of the examining magistrate of the Miskolc court, 

consisting of several items, in the case of the Jewish 

executions that took place on the so-called Létrástető on 

the Jávorkut plateau of the Bükk Mountains. The 

documents provide a detailed account of the 

circumstances of the ecumene count, identifications, the 

condition of the dead, and the results of the investigation. 

"..The 47th body is 177 cm. a remarkably tall and 

remarkably slim man with black hair. Clean teeth. English 

mustache. Clothing: white shirt, with mother-of-pearl 

buttons and side pockets, blue jacket, "observation 

belt" / Cicit / handkerchief. Shirt and short underpants 

made of the same material, the upper pants are 

coarsely muddied. The legs are bare. .." 

"..A Hebrew prayer book was found with the victim, 

written in German jargon, and the book is the book 

of the prophet Esau in Hebrew letters. It is black with 

a linen paper envelope. .." 

"..At the autopsy on May 8, several bandaged 

bodies had already been found, and thus the gauze 

bandage and hospital shirt of the 83rd body are 

decisive evidence, combined with the testimony of Miklós 

Kolos, that this series of grave occupants were probably taken from the Miskolc hospital to the 

collection point and from there to the grave mound on Létrástető. .." 

"..the person mentioned came with him from Beregszász with a 92-member worker company, which 

was resting in front of the Minorite church on November 2, 1944. Dr. László Berényi and a merchant 

from Mezőcsát named Grünberger went to look around the city because the surveillance was lax and 

they did not return from this trip, although a guard from Eger also looked for them in the Arrow Cross 

house, but they denied being there...Dr. László Berényi also ended up in the Arrow Cross house, 

because he was thrown into a grave with the other victims from the Arrow Cross house.." 

  



  



D12.) (B17) 

1944 - Urgent notification from the Hungarian Royal Ministry of Industry, on the topic of " Textile 

campaign for war factories ". 

"..I will make the stock of goods and materials in the closed textile shops of Jews available at 

wholesale prices to the workers, low-paid officials of the war factories, and their family members." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



D13.) (C8) 

1944 - November 1944. Decree of the ministerial commissioner assigned to the relocation of Jews 

entitled "Key points of the instructions of the assigned military authority for the implementation of 

the relocation of Jews", stamped: "confidential ". 

"..6. When lining up in the courtyards of 

houses, separate Jewish men between the 

ages of 16 and 50 and Jewish women 

between the ages of 16 and 40 who are 

obligated to do national defense work but 

have not yet fulfilled their obligation must be 

selected. They should be asked to wear warm 

clothes, sturdy shoes, bring a blanket, a 

cooking pot, and 3 days' 

worth of food. After this is 

done, they should be 

grouped in groups of 100 

on the street, along with 

similarly privileged 

residents of neighboring 

houses... 7. The remaining 

Jews - after a careful check 

of their numbers - must be 

escorted in groups to the 

committee for assigning 

them to new apartments, 

to Klauzál Square in the 7th 

district..." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



D14.) (C18) 

1945 - Letter from widow Mrs. R. Zsigmondné to the mayor of Budapest regarding a business 

premises in the 7th district, which was allocated to (also jewish) Ilona Klein. According to the letter, 

Ilona Klein is currently under arrest, as she was a Jew and acted as an agent for the Gestapo! 

"..he is being held at 

the police 

headquarters as an 

agent of the German 

Gestapo..he personally 

conducted house 

searches with Gestapo 

detectives and 

arrested people.." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



D15.) (C34) 

1944 - Large-scale poster of the Budapest Police Chief regarding compliance with Jewish laws. 

"...Jews may only travel in the last trailer of a multi-car tram train...Jews may not be in parks and 

promenades..." 

"...Jews who are required to wear a distinctive sign (yellow star)...may leave the houses designated 

for them as their residences ONLY BETWEEN 2 PM and 5 PM , exclusively for medical treatment, 

cleaning, or shopping...; ..A Jew may not receive visitors in his apartment, and may not converse 

through the window of his apartment overlooking the street..." 

 

  



D16.) (E7) 

1944 - A collection of particularly interesting letters sent 

to Sándor Kohn, a forced laborer, from his brother and 

sister-in-law. 

"..No news from Miskolc since Thursday last week..are the 

poor Mamukádék (~Parents) still alive?..." ; "..Our 

apartment has changed again, we can go out only from 

11-5.." ; "..we also have to go into the designated houses 

by Wednesday.."; "..for now, the move-in period has been 

extended until Saturday.." ; "...it is impossible for private 

individuals to get into the Swedish Red Cross..." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



D17.) (G6) 

1943-1945 - Letters from Lili Korda (formerly 

Kohn) : 

 

1943 - Looking for his brother, Tibor Korda - a 

labor serviceman for the Nagykáta military draft 

center. Tibor enlisted in May 1942, but there was 

no news of him a year later. 

1944 - Three letters to her mother while Lili is 

forced to march west. One of the letters reads: 

"...Dear mother, we are in Magyaróvár, we are 

leaving, my efforts did not lead to Hegyeshalom 

with success. You can go home with Spanish 

protection, Maybe Swedish or Swiss.." 

1945 - Letters sent from Stockholm to his relative named Jolán, where he went to recover after the 

liberation. 

".. I wish the good Lord would grant that the other relatives would also show signs of life ..", ".. There 

is no Jew in CENTRAL EUROPE today who would not mourn. I also constantly reproach myself, could 

we not have saved our parents .." 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 

 

  



D18.) (G13) 

20th century - Dr. Ármin Goldberger (Gáspár) 

lawyer, chief notary and jewish community president 

of Abony, World War I veteran, labor serviceman 

documents. 

The collection contains many interesting things, 

including: 

- Review of the court order of László Endre , the 

deputy governor of Pest-Pilis-Solt-Kiskun County 

(organizer of later deportations) from 1943, because Dr. 

Ármin Goldberger's dog bit an injured party (Abolition of 

the first-instance judgment and stricter punishment...) 

-Documents related to wearing the Károly's 

Cross during World War I 

- Weapons possession certificate as a chief 

notary of Abony from 1946 

- " Zs " military pay book from labor service 

-Legal documents about Arrow Cross members, 

regarding objects stolen during persecution 

- A particularly interesting autobiography from 

1962 : 

".. With the help of Otto Pessl, a Gestapo officer 

from Vienna assigned to Budapest, we were able to come to 

Budapest in his car with German license plates and here my 

wife and I hid in the apartment of a good friend of mine.. ; ..I 

hid for three days, then I was put in the Kolumbus Street 

camp run by Rezső Kastner, which camp was under the 

custody of the Gestapo. ..Here I handed over a ten-carat 

diamond, worth about 14-15,000 marks, and 50 Napoleon gold 

pieces to Kastner , with the understanding that these values would 

go to Eichmann .." 

  



 

  



 

 


